



Energy Management Initiatives in the Government of Ras Al Khaimah

Report August 2021

Table of Contents

1	Sun	ummary						
2	Introduction							
2.1 Ras Al Khaimah								
	2.2 Ras Al Khaimah Energy Efficiency & Renewables (EE&R) Strategy 2040							
	2.2.1 Building Retrofits Program							
	2.2.	2 Energy Management Program	6					
	2.3	Role of the Government of Ras Al Khaimah in the Programs	6					
3	Met	hodology	8					
	3.1	Municipality Buildings Retrofit Project	8					
3.2 Municipality Deep Retrofit Project								
	3.3	Whole-Government Retrofit Project	9					
	3.4	Municipality Energy Management Project	9					
	3.5	3.5 Whole-Government Quick-wins						
	3.6	3.6 Whole-Government Energy Management						
4	Res	ults 1	3					
	4.1	Municipality Buildings Retrofit Project	3					
	4.2	Municipality Energy Management Project 1	3					
	4.3	Whole-Government Quick-wins	4					
	4.4	Whole-Government Energy Management 1	5					
5	Cor	Conclusion						
6	Editorial Team							

Citation

Reem (Energy Efficiency and Renewables Office), Ras Al Khaimah Municipality, 2021 – Energy Management Initiatives in the Government of Ras Al Khaimah.

Copyright © 2021 Ras Al Khaimah Municipality

Unless otherwise stated, material in this publication may be freely used, shared, copied, reproduced, printed and/or stored, provided that appropriate acknowledgement is given to Ras Al Khaimah Municipality as the source and copyright holder. Material in this publication that is attributed to third parties may be subject to separate terms of use and restrictions, and appropriate permissions from these third parties may need to be secured before any use of such material.

Disclaimer

This publication and the material herein are provided "as is". All reasonable precautions have been taken by Ras Al Khaimah Municipality to verify the reliability of the material on this publication. However, neither Ras Al Khaimah Municipality nor any of its officials, agents, data or other third-party content providers provides a warranty of any kind, either expressed or implied, and they accept no responsibility or liability for any consequence of use of the publication or material herein. The mention of specific companies or certain projects or products does not imply that they are endorsed or recommended by Ras Al Khaimah Municipality in any preference to others of a similar nature that are not mentioned.

1 Summary

Energy and water are central to the policy agenda of the Government of Ras Al Khaimah, and in 2018, the Energy Efficiency & Renewables (EE&R) Strategy 2040 was adopted to support competitiveness of the economy, through efficient use and cost-competitive, available and reliable supply of energy and water. The EE&R Strategy envisages the government as a champion in adopting energy efficiency solutions. In line with this vision, the Government of Ras Al Khaimah set the ambition to be the first ISO 50001:2018 compliant local government by 2023.

Government adoption of energy efficiency was mandated through a directive, Amiri Resolution No.15 of 2018, setting an overall target of 20% energy and water savings by 2022 for the entire Government of Ras Al Khaimah. A government organisation: Energy Efficiency and Renewables Office (Reem) in Ras Al Khaimah Municipality has been assigned the task to coordinate implementation. Following this mandate, a plan was prepared to reach the target. This plan, shown in figure 1, is largely on track as this paper is being written.

All the initiatives of the plan have yielded successful results. Savings of over AED 400,000 (EUR 92,000) were obtained in the first year of operations following the Municipality retrofit project, setting a successful example to be followed by other organisations. An energy management system was deployed at the Municipality and is undergoing an ISO 50001:2018 certification process. A quick-win initiative was also implemented across 23 government entities, leading to about 8% energy savings in the summer of 2020 vs. 2019, after adjusting for differences in weather conditions. These savings are additional to those attributable to reduced office occupancy due to the COVID-19 pandemic. While quick-wins were being implemented, Reem began preparations to extend the energy management system to other government entities. ISO 50001:2018 is the guiding standard for this initiative, as it was for the Municipality.



Figure 1: Timeline to reach energy management targets for Ras Al Khaimah government. Source: Reem

The case of retrofits and energy management in the Government of Ras Al Khaimah provides some key learnings or conclusions that may be applicable to other governments in the region and the world. These learnings are listed below:

- 1) A well-implemented, low investment approach can lead to significant energy savings.
- 2) Starting with quick-wins can support the case for more comprehensive measures.
- 3) Regular monitoring and reporting seems to be the most effective quick-win.
- 4) A centralised approach supports faster and more complete participation, as well as crosslearnings.
- 5) A small control team, for example, positioned within an energy agency, can easily coordinate activities across a large number of government entities (the whole-government energy management initiative was entirely driven by three employees of Reem working for about 20% of their time; a key input to make this possible is the support of government leadership in obtaining high degrees of participation from government entities).

2 Introduction

2.1 Ras Al Khaimah

Ras Al Khaimah is the fourth-largest emirate in the United Arab Emirates, occupying an area of 2,478 km² with a population of about 400,000 residents. The emirate is governed under the leadership of UAE Supreme Council Member and Ruler of Ras Al Khaimah, His Highness Sheikh Saud bin Saqr Al Qasimi, and the Crown Prince, His Highness Sheikh Mohammed bin Saud bin Saqr Al Qasimi.

2.2 Ras Al Khaimah Energy Efficiency & Renewables Strategy 2040

Ras Al Khaimah is undergoing a remarkable transformation and growth in multiple sectors of its economy. Energy and water are central to the policy agenda of the Government of Ras Al Khaimah, and in 2018, the Energy Efficiency & Renewables (EE&R) Strategy was adopted to support competitiveness of the economy in different ways, through efficient energy use and cost-competitive, available and reliable energy supply. The EE&R Strategy targets 30% energy savings, 20% water savings and 20% contribution from renewables by 2040. It comprises nine (9) programs, which are briefly described in figure 2.

	Program		Brief & Objectives			Progra	m	Br	ief &	Objectives
	1. Green Building RegulationsIntroduce and periodically upgrade green building regulations for new buildings. Introduce efficient community guidelines and a building rating scheme at a later stage.				₽	5. Efficient Street Lighting		Adopt efficient lighting technologies (such as LEDs) for 400+km of existing street lighting and for new roads. Apply dimming and switch-off measures.		
	2. Building Retrofits Execute comprehensive energy efficiency improvement projects for at least 3,000 existing buildings by 2040, starting with large government and commercial buildings with				۲	6. Water Reuse & Efficient Irrigation		Increase wastewater collection and treatment. Reuse at least 95% of the TSE produced by 2040. Implement efficient irrigation measures to allow for expansion of public green spaces.		
-@-	A Second State Stat					7. Solar Programs		Promote solar energy for on-site and utility scale applications, with an ambition to reach 1,200 MWp of total capacity by 2040.		
	-	consumpt Promote a	ion. Idoption of energy and w	7	8. Energy from Waste			to contribute at least 2% of the primary energy consumed in Ras Al Khaimah.		
 	4. Efficient Appliances	efficient appliances and equipment (such as air conditioners, refrigerators and water fixtures). Implement mechanisms to enforce appliance efficiency standards.			â	9. Effici Vehicle	ient s	Promote adopt focus on EVs an government fle	ion of 1d hyb ets.	efficient vehicles with a rids, starting with
Enablers	Awareness and Capacity Buildir Development of efficie consciousness in RA society, and building skills and capacitie	d Financing ng Mechanisms ency-Ensuring adequacy of AK capital for energy local efficiency & renewables s projects in RAK		Supr de eners	Research and Innovation porting research and welopment of new gy efficient solution: and technologies	5	Inform: Crea proces suppor monitor s	ation Systems ation of data sing tools to et projects and strategy progress		Policy and Regulation Adoption & enforcement of regulatory measures promoting implementation of the programs

Figure 2: EE&R Strategy Programs. Source: Reem

More information on the EE&R Strategy and its programs is available on the website of Reem, <u>www.reem.rak.ae</u>.

2.2.1 Building Retrofits Program

Existing buildings represent the majority of electricity consumption and a large portion of water consumption of Ras Al Khaimah. A retrofit project can substantially reduce the energy and water consumption of a building by replacing or optimising equipment or systems without interrupting the normal operations of the building. The Building Retrofits Program is therefore an important component of the EE&R Strategy. Its ambition is to ensure that at least 3,000 buildings are retrofitted in Ras Al Khaimah by 2040.



Figure 3: Building Retrofits Program plan & targets. Source: Reem

2.2.2 Energy Management Program

The Energy Management Program, which is the third program of the EE&R Strategy, aims to promote systematic energy management practices such as ISO 50001:2018 across high-energy users among industries as well as commercial and government entities in Ras Al Khaimah. The EE&R Strategy targets implementation of such energy management systems in at least 30 high-energy users by 2040.

2.3 Role of the Government of Ras Al Khaimah in the Programs

The Government of Ras Al Khaimah consists of 23 entities, covering different local government functions such as municipal services, public infrastructure, environmental protection, customs, museums, economic development, etc.

The EE&R Strategy envisages the government as a champion in adopting energy efficiency solutions. In the Building Retrofits and Energy Management Programs, the government is expected to set best-practice examples for the industry and the community to follow. In line with this vision, the Government of Ras Al Khaimah set an ambitious target to be the first ISO 50001:2018 compliant local government by 2023.

3 Methodology

At the launch of the Building Retrofits and Energy Management Programs, a mandate was issued by H.H. Sheikh Saud bin Saqr Al Qasimi, UAE Supreme Council Member and Ruler of Ras Al Khaimah, to set expectations from government and semi-government entities in terms of specific energy efficiency targets. The mandate expressed in Amiri Resolution No.15 of 2018, sets an overall target of 20% energy and water savings by 2022.

Following the issuance of this resolution, a plan was prepared for reaching the target. According to this plan, the Municipality was selected as a test-bed for a retrofit project followed by implementation of an energy management system. Following success at the Municipality, such projects would be replicated at the whole-government scale (see figure 1).



Figure 4: Amiri Resolution No.15 of 2018 and implementation guidelines. Source: Reem

The Municipality was selected as a pilot organisation, as it hosts Reem, which is the center of energy efficiency expertise in the government and is also the body coordinating the EE&R Strategy. This allowed easier project coordination in the initial stages of the plan.

3.1 Municipality Buildings Retrofit Project

The first retrofit project in government the was contracted under an energyperformance contracting (EPC) model with guaranteed savings, in October 2018. The scope includes four (4) buildings of the Municipality, with a total floor area of 11,000 m², and 31% savings are



Figure 5: Municipality Headquarter building. Source: Reem

expected in utility costs over 5 years. The total project investment was AED 1.7 m (~EUR 390,000) with a payback period of 4.3 years. In this project, the contracted ESCO guaranteed a minimum level of savings, and would reimburse the Municipality for any shortfall in savings during the contract period (2019-2024). The main energy conservation measures (ECMs) include HVAC

replacements and optimisations, lighting replacement, retrofit of water fixtures, sun control films on windows and thermal coating on the roof.

3.2 Municipality Deep Retrofit Project

The Municipality planned expansion of retrofit measures to other smaller Municipality buildings, following the success of the first retrofit project described in section 3.1. The expansion includes among other projects, the deep retrofit of one (1) building. This is reflected in the plan provided above in figure 1. The deep retrofit will test the effectiveness of building envelope improvement technologies, like façade and roof insulation. The chosen building for this project is the Archive Building, a building with special operational conditions, such as minimum sun light and low temperature requirement.

3.3 Whole-Government Retrofit Project

Building on the success of the Municipality retrofit project, Reem started a wider project to extend retrofit measures to other government entities in Ras Al Khaimah. Walkthrough audits of all the government buildings were conducted, revealing that about 60 buildings, covering 20 entities of the government, were suitable for retrofit projects. Some buildings were excluded from the scope of the retrofit project due to their special uses, for example, data centers, tenancy conditions, or extremely low consumption levels.

The suitable buildings were tendered for retrofit under a guaranteed savings contract, similar to the one adopted for the Municipality, and an ESCO was selected to carry out the project. It was decided to phase the project investment over three phases, with the first phase starting in 2020 addressing 12 of the most important buildings and the third phase extending through 2023. This first phase is currently on track with the expected savings being exceeded.

The project marked innovations in contracting and financing through a collaboration with Ras Al Khaimah Department of Finance, allowing a joint procurement approach across multiple entities.

3.4 Municipality Energy Management Project

Following completion of the Municipality building retrofit project, the implementation of an ISO 50001:2018 compliant energy management system was launched, in order to ensure continuous improvement of the achieved savings.

The Municipality first established an energy policy and an energy team to lead all energy management processes. A gap analysis was performed comparing existing processes with the requirements of ISO 50001:2018. Walkthrough energy audits of all 14 Municipality buildings were conducted. Also, processes for consumption reporting, monitoring and review were put in place, including development of a bespoke energy model for the Municipality buildings. Energy ambassadors were selected from each department, and awareness campaigns using emails and visual communication were deployed. Figure 6 illustrates some of the energy management actions of the Municipality. Currently, the Municipality is undergoing an ISO 50001:2018 certification process.



Consumption Monitoring



Energy team & monthly meetings



Figure 6: Energy Management Project implementation in the Municipality. Source: Reem

3.5 Whole-Government Quick-wins

After completion of the energy management system in the Municipality in 2020, Reem kicked off a wider energy management initiative, covering all 23 government entities. Energy management was perceived by government leadership as a tool to fight the economic difficulties caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Hence, quick-wins in energy equipment, monitoring, and consumption behaviour were prioritised for immediate deployment, with implementation of a more complete energy management system after the quick-wins. Energy managers and teams were nominated to coordinate this initiative in each government entity.



Figure 7: ISO 50001:2018 Energy Management for Ras Al Khaimah government project targets. Source: Reem

To activate this initiative, Reem, in collaboration with Ras Al Khaimah Department of Finance, deployed a central team to support all government entities. Through its energy management experience in the Municipality, Reem developed a set of 60 quick-win actions to be implemented in each government entity (see figure 8). Energy managers and teams were nominated to coordinate this initiative in each government entity.

A reporting system was put in place, including monthly collection and recording of utility bills, progress reporting, periodic workshops, and management meetings. Monthly workshops were conducted along with one-to-one meetings with all nominated energy managers to encourage and support them, and monitor their progress. While this system was put in place to deploy quick-wins on an accelerated basis, it also established the framework of coordination for the more comprehensive energy management initiative described in the next section.

		Quickwin
	1.0	Utility Bill Recording
	1.1	Identify the person / department in your entity receiving the utility bills every month
	1.2	Confirm bills cover all buildings and all accounts belonging to your entity
	1.3	Collect a copy of the bills from January 2019 till the latest available
E	1.4	Record the information from the collected bills in the utility bill tracker provided by Reem (per account number, bill date period, units consumed, value paid, both for electricity and water)
	1.5	Establish a process to receive a copy of the latest utility bill each month (email forward, calendar entry to remind concerned person, shared folder for bill soft copy, or any other)
E	1.6	Record every month the information from the latest bill in the utility bill tracker, to keep it updated
	2.0	Management Meeting
	2.1	Ensure formal nomination of the ISOS0001 team by the Director General, including the Energy Principal as the Energy Manager / Leader
	2.2	Identify the Top Management team in your entity, including the Director General, other Directors and any other relevant concerned person
	2.3	Establish a periodic meeting between the ISO50001 team and the Top Management team to discuss progress, results achieved so far and to plan the next steps (suggestion: every 2 months or every quarter)
	2.4	Establish a periodic meeting for the ISO50001 team to discuss in detail the results achieved so far, monitor ongoing actions, and plan work towards the next steps (suggestion: every 2 weeks or every month)
	2.5	Define a standard agenda for both the above meetings, and a standard format of the presentation to be used in every meeting
	2.6	Record attendance and key decisions made in meeting minutes, to be distributed to all ISO50001 team members and Top Management team members
r	3.0	Awareness & Communication
	3.1	Communicate to all staff of your entity that ISO50001 is being implemented across the organization, and that everyone's support is essential for success
	3.2	Clearly communicate the objectives of the project, why ISO50001 is being implemented, and how each person can concretely contribute (refer to specific energy savings quick wins)
	3.3	Create an awareness strategy and plan, with continuous communication to all staff (suggestion: monthly) with either concrete calls to action (like energy savings quick wins) or to share results from the project achievements (like energy savings)
A L	3.4	Create digital collaterals to use across communication channels (refer to examples provided by Reem for resources and inspiration)
INIAIN	3.5	Identify the corporate communications team in your entity, and provide them content to dissiminate through internal communication channels (ex: ney media)
1	3.6	Develop signage and marketing collaterals to use within your entity offices in key areas (ex: next to light switches, next to thermostats,
<u>د</u>	3.7	Record awareness and communication initiatives implemented
	3.8	Consider recognition or rewards for staff with outstanding contributions to energy saving actions an ince
2	4.0	Reporting Mechanism
<u>B</u>	4.1	Send a copy of the utility bill tracker (from 1.0) to Reem on the 15th of
2	4.2	Report on the 15th of every month (using a standard format) month
	4.3	Participate in the regular IS7
	5.0	Temperature Setp
	5.1	
	5.2	

Figure 8: Illustrative extract of the established list of quick-wins. Source: Reem

3.6 Whole-Government Energy Management

During implementation of the quick-wins, Reem began preparations to deploy a full-fledged energy management system for the government. ISO 50001:2018 was the guiding document for this initiative, as it was for the Municipality. The five-step roadmap below was adopted, with the final goal of ISO 50001:2018 certification. The Energy Management initiative in Ras Al Khaimah government is now in the implementation phase as shown in figure 9.

Preparation Completed	Quick wins	Gap analysis	Implementation Ongoing	ISO 50001 certification
 Formal commitment from each entity Nomination of entity- level teams Confirmation of buildings in the scope (the ones in the retrofit or others) Compilation of 2019 and 2020 electricity & water bills and fuel consumption 	 Immediate planning of quick-wins Implementation of process quick-wins Implementation of energy saving quick-wins like thermostat controls, de-lamping, water flow reducers 	 Identification of gaps between existing processes and ISO 50001 requirements Collection and review of information on gaps Preparation of gap analysis report with gaps identified and roadmap to overcome them 	 Actions to close gaps identified in the gap analysis Continuous support and review of actions from Reem Sharing of EnMS toolbox by Reem to simplify the work 	 Achievement of "certification ready" status through full alignment with ISO 50001 Internal audit to verify compliance with ISO 50001 Certification through an independent body

Figure 9: Energy management initiatives in Ras Al Khaimah government. Source: Reem

4 Results

4.1 Municipality Buildings Retrofit Project

The five-year period of operations, maintenance and guaranteed savings started in 2019. The project is expected to deliver guaranteed total savings of more than 4 GWh of electricity over the contract period, and save more than $36,000 \text{ m}^3$ of water. This will lead to avoidance of about 3,300 tons of CO₂ emissions. The results of the first year of operations were aligned with these expectations. The schedule in figure 10 provides a summary of project measurement and verification (M&V) for the first year. Savings of over AED 400,000 (EUR 92,000) were obtained, setting a successful example to be followed by other organisations.

	AED	EUR
Baseline consumption	1,260,464	~290,000
Reporting period consumption	969,052	~223,000
Adjusted baseline consumption	1,371,847	~316,000
Net actual savings	402,795	~92,000
Target savings	350,564	~81,000

Figure 10: First year savings of the Municipality's retrofit project. Source: Reem

4.2 Municipality Energy Management Project

The results from implemented energy management actions are monitored and tracked in an energy review process, showing the savings achieved versus targets, through a bespoke energy consumption-tracking tool as shown in figure 11.

Date	Monthly Electricity Consumption (kWh)	CDD	Monthly Adusted Baseline (kWh)	Annualised Adjusted Baseline (kWh)	Annualised Actual Energy Consumption (kWh)	Target (%)	Target (kWh)	EnPI Value - Difference (kWh)	EnPI Value - Difference (%)	RAKM Mun HQ - Energy Performance vs Monthly Target Consumption
Jan-17	81,744	99	81,744							
Feb-17	64,832	74	64,832	RAK	M Mun HQ - Adjusted Bas	eline Consum	ption versus Act	tual Monthly Consumpti	on	
Mar-17	78,883	186	78,883							
Apr-17	93,266	128	93,266							
May-17	142,549	443	142,549	A						
Jun-17	126,128	520	126,128		1 and the second	and the second	-		1000	
Jul-17	140,168	597	140,168			-	and the	Second Second	\sim	
Aug-17	214,316	564	214,316							
Sep-17	5,182	451	5,182	2233	2 2 2 2 2 3	3 3 5	P 19 19 19	マママウア	233	
Oct-17	298,293	371	298,293	4 4 4 6 4	~ # # C # #	4 6 4	Ma 12 00	4 4 4 6 4	\$ 4 C	
Nov-17	117,899	214	117,899		Monthly Electricity Co	sumption (kWh)	Month	hy Adusted Baseline (kWh)		
Dec-17	98,740	102	98,740							
Jan-18	85,717	57	72,058	1,452,314	1,465,973	-0.50%	1,445,052	13,659	0.94%	
Feb-18	90,093	108	80,443	1,467,925	1,491,234	-1.00%	1,453,245	23,309	1.59%	
Mar-18	72,829	177	92,592	1.481,694	1,485,174	-1.50%	1,459,409	1,540	6.245	
Apr-18	15,622	390	118,774	1,507,141	1,407,530	-2.00%	1,476,999	-99,611	4.67%	
May-18	111,054	44.3	134,110	1,502,703	1,176,035	-2.50%	1,465,135	-126,868	4.47%	
Jun-18	127,611	208	148,891	1,525,465	1,377,518	-3.00%	1,479,701	-147,947	1.00	
JUP 18	100,000		102,080	1,547,878	1,096,008	-3.50%	1,493,752	-131,540	1.175	Annualised Actual Energy Consumption (kWh) - Target (kWh) - Annualised Adjusted Baseline (kWh)
Aug-18	121,001		157,789	1,491,991	1,491,142	4.100	1,558,050	-115,548	4 100	
Oct-18	174.689	10.4	111.480	1,454,053	1 107 4 10	4.000	1.000.000		4.075	RAKM Mun HQ - Energy Performance Target versus Current Position
Nov-18	143.509	100	10.000	1.436.222	1,000,048	-1.50%	1,857,290	42.974	1.005	
Dec.18	84, 544	104	80.443	1.417.975	1,000,014	4.00%	1,002,050		3.615	
Jan.19	#5.717	- 14	74.189	1.424.256	1.080.674	-4.50%	1,521,680	-43.382	-1.05%	â
Feb-19	75.444	80	75,994	1.415.807	1.866.225	-7.00%	1.820.421	-53.582	-3.77%	\Rightarrow \sim
Mar-19	74,335	133	#5.063	1.412.278	1.367.737	-7.50%	1.896.957	-44.541	-3.15%	
Apr-19	85.605	330	118.774	1,412,278	1,437,720	-8.00%	1,299,296	25.442	1.80%	
May-19	97,678	443	134,110	1,412,278	1,424,344	-8.50%	1,292,294	12,066	0.85%	
Jun-19	126,927	506	148,891	1,412,278	1,423,660	-9.00%	1,285,179	11,362	0.81%	
Jul-19	193,562	586	162,580	1,412,278	1,458,234	-9.50%	1.278.112	45,956	3.25%	
Aug-19	182,642	554	157,789	1,412,278	1,447,475	-10.00%	1,271,050	35,197	2.49%	
Sep-19	153,676	485	145,297	1,412,278	1,480,150	-10.50%	1,263,989	67,872	4.82%	
Oct-19	127,382	354	122,680	1,412,278	1,432,843	-11.00%	1,256,927	20,545	3.46%	
Nov-19	101,785	209	98,068	1,412,278	1,391,119	-11.50%	1,249,866	-21,159	-1.50%	
Dec-19	64,399	104	80,443	1,412,278	1,369,152	-12.00%	1,242,805	-43,126	-3.05%	
Jan-20	62,878	94	78,389	1,412,278	1,346,313	-12.50%	1,235,743	-65,965	-4.67%	
Feb-20	45,210		75,994	1,412,278	1,396,079	-13.00%	1,228,682	-76,199	-5.47%	
Mar-20	68,362	133	85,063	1,412,278	1,331,106	-13.50%	1,321,421	-41,172	-5.75%	- דע,
Apr-20	76,101	390	118,774	1,412,278	1,321,602	-14.00%	1,714,559	-90,676	6.475	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
May-20	93,424	443	136,110	1,412,278	1,317,348	-14.50%	1,207,498	-94,990	4.72%	
Jun-20	128,197	1 206	144,891	1.412.278	1,716,618	1 125.00%	1,000,436	-91,860	-a.77%	

Figure 11: Tool to monitor energy consumption. Illustrative (figures not disclosed for confidentiality) Source: Reem

A more rigorous management of temperature set points for AC was considered one of the main improvement opportunities in energy performance. Therefore, the energy manager and team were dedicating their efforts to enforce a 23°C set point throughout the office spaces, while allowing a variation of 1°C. A periodical reporting process on the cases of non-compliance versus target set points was useful to plan action, and reinforce conviction that full compliance is possible, as shown in figure 12.



Figure 12: Average deviation from the standard set point (23°C) for August (left, before intervention) and September (right, after intervention) 2019 by department. Department names not shown for confidentiality. Source: Reem

4.3 Whole-Government Quick-wins

Monthly workshops with energy managers started from May 2020. These workshops have demonstrated the continuous commitment of energy managers to the initiative, over 14 workshops so far. The implementation of quick-wins is tracked using a bespoke tool as shown in figure 13.



Figure 13: Quick-win action tracking tool. Government entity names not shown for confidentiality. Source: Reem

In the summer of 2020, about 8% savings were observed versus the same period of 2019, after adjusting for differences in weather conditions, with most government entities showing a decrease in energy consumption, as shown in figure 14.



Figure 14: Consumption in 2020 vs 2019 (February – July). Source: Reem

Part of the savings during this period may have been driven by lower occupancy of government offices during the COVID-19 pandemic. However, impact of the pandemic seems relatively small compared to the impact of quick-wins as shown by the comparison of savings in the months of April and May, both characterised by lockdown measures.

4.4 Whole-Government Energy Management



Figure 15: ISO 50001 implementation roadmap. Source: Reem

A gap analysis showed common gaps in ISO 50001 readiness among government entities. Therefore, a common implementation roadmap was developed to bring all government entities to ISO 50001:2018 readiness, targeting completion within one (1) year.

Reem is supporting the implementation in all government entities through monthly workshops, guidance sessions and energy management tools.



Figure 16: Support provided by Reem, Ras Al Khaimah Municipality. Source: Reem

5 Conclusions

The case of retrofits and energy management in the Government of Ras Al Khaimah provides some key learnings that may be applicable to other governments in the region and the world. The main learnings are the following:

- 1) A well implemented, low investment approach can lead to significant energy savings
- 2) Starting with quick-wins can support the case for more comprehensive measures
- 3) Regular monitoring and reporting seems to be the most effective quick-win
- 4) A centralised approach supports faster and more complete participation, as well as crosslearnings
- 5) A small control team, e.g. positioned within an energy agency, can easily coordinate activities across a large number of government entities (the whole-government energy management initiative was entirely driven by three employees of Reem working for about 20% of their time; a key input to make this possible is the support of government leadership in obtaining high degrees of participation from government entities)

6 Editorial Team



For any feedback on the content of this document, contact Reem, the Energy Efficiency and Renewables Office of Ras Al Khaimah Municipality (<u>info.eer@mun.rak.ae</u>)

About Ras Al Khaimah Municipality and Reem

Ras Al Khaimah Municipality was established in 1959 by an Emiri decree issued by His Highness Sheikh Saqr bin Mohammed Al Qasimi and since then works on providing a comfortable environment in which people can live and work. <u>Reem, the Energy Efficiency and Renewables</u> <u>Office</u> at Ras Al Khaimah Municipality coordinates the implementation of the RAK Energy Efficiency and Renewables Strategy 2040, established under the patronage of His Highness Sheikh Saud bin Saqr Al Qasimi, UAE Supreme Council Member and Ruler of Ras Al Khaimah. The Strategy targets 30% energy savings, 20% water savings, and 20% generation from renewable energy sources by 2040.



بلدية رأس الخيمة

Ras Al Khaimah Municipality

